
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2019 SENATE APPROPRIATIONS  
 

SB 2016 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2016 
1/7/2019 

 JOB # 30498 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk:    Alice Delzer and Alicia Larsgaard 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

  
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the office of the 
adjutant general; and to provide for a transfer.   
 

Minutes:                                                 1. Testimony of Major General Alan S. Dohrmann, 
Adj. Gen.  

 
Chairman Holmberg: Called the Committee to order on SB 2016 at 2:30 pm. All committee 
members were present. Alex Cronquist, Legislative Council and Becky Deichert, OMB were 
also present.  
 
Adjutant General Alan Dohrmann also Director of Emergency Services: Testified in 
support of the governor’s budget recommendation and SB 2016. See Attachment # 1, the 
testimony of the Major General, which states the role of the National Guard and Emergency 
Services and the budget requests and needs for the next biennium. (4.18) There is a strong 
need for stronger military and cyber and space protection. We need to, as a nation, change 
our focus. (8.46) Pages 3-4:  Three components of readiness requirements: 1. Personnel 
readiness. 2. New training model for National Guard. 3. Our facilities.   
 
(15.30) Senator Mathern: On the readiness issue, how do we rate compared to SD?  What 
is the authorized level in terms of number personnel compared to ND?  What are they 
authorized as a full contingent?  
 
Adj. Gen. Alan Dohrmann: For SD, their in-strength is around 2,900, where ours is around 
3,000. MN is over 10,000. Our economy provides great opportunities in North Dakota which 
may impact the folk’s decisions to serve because there are plenty of job opportunities out 
there. Based on our population we recruit more people per capita than SD or MN.  We drove 
down our in-strength to 3,000, because we thought we could maintain that number. Right 
now we are around 2,950.  In Minot, it is harder to hire people to secure the missal field. We 
have a new mission in Fargo to build a new facility. It takes years to train the airman to do a 
mission. He continued with his written testimony on page 4 regarding the North Dakota 
Department of Emergency Services. (NDDES). (21:22) We need to build relationships with 
the counties, townships, we need to make sure that trust is there before we are actually 
needed to assist in an emergency. (21:57) Continued to read his testimony on page 5.   
Following the DAPL emergency, we went into the worst draught and wildfire situation and 
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our team responded, in terms to the wildfires we need to bring in the Department of 
Agriculture and also the State Forester, we need to keep these relationships in place in the 
case the people of ND need us. The first challenge is the workforce for NDDES. (23:33) 
Continued to read from testimony on page 5-6. (27.11) We were requested to provide the 
following: 1. Explanation of our 2017-19 Budget. 2. Estimated 2017-19 Spending and Status 
of One-Time Funding. 3. Comparison of our 2017-19 Budget with the Governor’s 2019-21 
Recommendation. All of these can be found attached to the testimony. The reason I ran short 
was that there was a change in federal policy, that found that the use of federal tuition 
assistance and the GI bill by our Army National Guard members was considered dual 
compensation and therefore they had to choose between one or the other. In almost all 
cases, they chose the GI bill which puts pressure on the State Tuition Assistance Program. 
The other impact to that was the University System had raised tuition around 25%. NDSU 
was closer to 45%. The majority of the students of the national guard that utilized tuition 
assistance attend NDSU. That combined with efforts in recruiting have been putting stress 
on the program and causes us to run short of funds. Other than that, we think we will execute 
as projected and we don’t suspect any turn backs. (30:35) Continued reading from testimony 
on page 7 under Federal Funds. (36:36) Continued reading testimony on Executive 
Recommendation beginning at the bottom of page 8. We have 1 vacant FTE position, that 
we are turning back in. Under the “Capital Assets” headline; most of the land is needed so 
there is a safety zone on the range in case there is a ricochet that goes astray. Of the land 
we have at Camp Grafton right now 95% is still in production, either being tilled, which is a 
very small majority, or being grazed under leases with ranchers in the local area.  That range 
runs about 78 to 80 days a year and back to what my job is to train soldiers and airmen so 
they do their missions and when they do the mission there as safe as they possibly can be.  
(40.11) Right now a few in a military police company in Dickinson, ND, with the weapon 
systems you have, you have to go to Camp Ripley, Mn, or Camp Guernsey, Wy for every 
annual training period. Every unit in the ND National Guard that has a machine gun or a 
weapon that has a caliber bullet over a 223, we call it a 556, but a small round, if you want 
to qualify on that weapon you have to go to Camp Ripley in Mn or Camp Guernsey, Wy.  
There are only 37 days a year to train. If you have to get in your vehicles and drive at convoy 
speed at 35 or 40 MPH, from Dickinson to either Camp Guernsey, Wy or Camp Ripley, Mn,  
you are going to waste 2-4  days of your 37 days of training days just to driving down the 
road.  What we are trying to do is make sure we can train our soldiers and make them ready 
today and more lethal tomorrow right in ND.  That’s not just the Army NG, the Air Guard has 
requirements too.  we safeguard the missile fields at Minot Air Force Base.  Both Grand Forks 
and Minot AFB would love the opportunity to drive 90 miles east or west and qualify in their 
weapons systems right here in the state of ND.  The requirements there is a heavy lift.  We 
have held 4 town hall meetings, one with New Rockford, with Eddy County Commission, one 
at Camp Grafton North in Devils Lake, one at Camp Grafton South.  The first one was spirited, 
there is no good way to go up to someone and say, “Hey, I want to buy your land”  because 
they may not want to sell.  But once we got past that, we don’t have the right to take the land 
from you.  In the governor’s budget recommendation, it is very clear that eminent domain 
cannot be used, I am not sure I could ever get the authority, even if I wanted it, but eminent 
domain cannot be used to purchase land to expand Camp Grafton. (42.50)  Even if it could 
be used, it is critical important that we remain good neighbors in Eddy County and I’m not 
going to have good neighbors if I take people’s land from them. The other concern we had 
going in is, what happens to the tax pays in Eddy County.  But the way this program is being 
funded in the governor’s budget recommendation, that section of law requires us to pay a fee 



Senate Appropriations Committee  
SB 2016 Adj. General  
01-07-2019 
Page 3  
   

in lieu of taxes and that pay in lieu of taxes has to equal the amount that a private party would 
pay if they were paying taxes in that jurisdiction. (43.41) What we’re asking for is to secure 
the money, so we can pursue this opportunity. As I told every farmer and rancher in Eddy 
County, if you don’t want to sell, you don’t have to sell. I contacted the Stockmen’s 
Association because they came out against it because it violates some of their core 
principles.  I knew this going in, but it was confirmed, the Stockmen’s Association are great 
Americans. I don’t think there is any doubt about that but they don’t like government owning 
land, however, we let them know that eminent domain will never be used.  And they let us 
know and there was a joint release that went out between myself and the Stockmen’s 
Association where I committed to no eminent domain and they committed to they would never 
come between a willing buyer and a willing seller.    
 
Senator Sorvaag (45.02)  Would you only purchase if you can get it all so you don’t end up 
owning a bunch of land in which you can’t end up using the land for what you wanted it for? 
How are you going to approach that if one holds out, are you not going to buy the rest of the 
land?  
 
Adj. Gen: Yes, because we really don’t have a need for some of this land to build this range. 
The other thing we shared with everybody, is most of this land is strictly needed for a danger 
safety zone.  The likelihood of a bullet landing there is quite remote.  It would be our desire 
where the range complex is built, that we own that land.  But when you get into the danger 
zone on the edges, if this would work for their business plan, if we could enter into a 25-year 
lease with a farmer or rancher just to have enough interest in that property that if there’s a 
ricochet into their property that we’re covered, then we wouldn’t need to purchase that land.  
We lease back all this land, especially in the safety danger zone area and there is a good 
possibility that a soldier would never even walk on that land because we would never have 
a reason too.  
 
Senator Erbele: (46.50)  Could you lease the land instead of buying it?  
 
Adj. Gen: Yes. But we would prefer to own the land where we do the construction. As we 
get into that safety danger zone, leasing would be fine.  
 
Senator Grabinger: How many other sites did you consider? I know you used to camp to 
the southeast of Camp Grafton, down past St. Michael’s.   Did you look at some of those  
sites as an easier opportunity to get the land?  
 
Adj. Gen: (47.51)  We looked a little bit. We got a head start at Camp Grafton South.  We 
already own over 9,000 acres.  There is an existing range complex there. Part of our 
challenge is, right now we can fire our M16 personal weapon, we can fire our side arms, but 
with some new rounds coming out in our ballistic characteristics, even our M16 range is going 
to be cut in half. The one machine gun that we can currently fire those range complexes are 
there already. It would be much easier and cost effective to expand at Camp Grafton. If we 
can’t find a solution at Camp Grafton, then it is my obligation to keep looking for solutions for 
our requirements.  Camp Grafton seems to be the best place to do this.   
 
Senator Robinson: Where are these 6,000 acres located that you are looking to obtain in 
proximity to the present Camp Grafton South?  Are we looking to the west or east?  
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Adj. Gen: To the south of Highway 15. With that said, we need to find willing participants in 
this endeavor. So if opportunities come up some other place that will meet that requiement, 
we will certainly look into that.     
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: I am assuming the 6,000 acres need to be continuous, is that correct?   
 
Adj. Gen: Yes. Right now building to the south would make the most sense but if there are 
other opportunities somewhere else we might have to look at that.  Right now the southern 
part of Camp Grafton makes the most sense because it is currently a safety danger zone for 
our current range complex.  If we build anywhere else that would probably take away some 
of the maneuver space we have right now.   
 
V. Chairman Wanzek: Doesn’t that make your challenge a little more difficult too? The need 
to be continuous.  I am sure you are not going to find many individuals that will have 6,000 
acres of continuous property.   
 
Adj. Gen:  During these town hall meetings we have personally talked to every landowner.  
It is not one family with interest in a ranch, it might be multiple families. We have 
communicated with 50 families on what we are looking to do here, just staging interest and 
receiving their feedback.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: This is the shining object that will generate discussions in this budget.  
 
Adj. Gen:  Yes.  We’ve been talking about this for 30 years. The last time a machine gun 
was fired at Camp Grafton was in the 80’s. For 30 years, we’ve been saying, wouldn’t it be 
nice, and up to 2001 maybe the answer to that is yes it would be nice, but there is no 
requirement, we’ll just have to keep going to Camp Ripley.  But again getting back to 
operational reserve and the need to get soldiers and airmen trained and ready to go on a 
short notice, I don’t see it any more as a nice to have thing.  I think it is critically important 
hat we provide the resources they need to keep them as safe as they can be with when they 
go down range.  And this may be too hard to do. But after 30 years of saying “wouldn’t it be 
nice”, I personally and my staff personally thought that if we don’t try we’ll never know. So 
we are trying and hopefully we can find a solution. 
 
Chairman Holmberg: (53.18) One question about the geography.  Is there a Lake 
Washington? or Lake Cole?  Are they part of your property?  It was confirmed that Lake Cole  
is. 
 
Adj. Gen: (54.08) Continued with testimony on page 10 regarding the Grants. This line 
provides rental payments to community owned armories partially occupied by NDNG units 
throughout the state. Right now, the NDNSG leases space in seven armories. During the 
current biennium the NDNG vacated six city owned armories in the communities of Mayville, 
Bottineau, Carrington, Grafton, Mott, and Rugby. Civil Air patrols, we handle their budget for 
them.  He continued on page 11 regarding tuition, recruiting and retention. I think it’s 
important we fully fund the program of tuition, recruiting and retention. I can tell you, while 
this is critically important to the readiness of the NG, I would list tuition assistance as parties 
one, two and three when it comes to recruiting young men and women to join the NDNG. I 
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think its critically important we fully fund this program.  Concurrently we are working with our 
congressional delegation to try to change the DOD policy that really put all the pressure on 
the state program.  What that policy did, it happened in 2014, DOD, a new bunch of attorneys 
read the law and they came up with a different interpretation of what the law or policy said. 
so after 2014, if you join the Army National Guard you can get federal tuition assistance and 
the GI bill.  And they are both valued at about $6,000 a year if you are a student at NDSU. 
The rules didn’t change, the interpretation of the rule changed in 2014. In the last couple of 
years the adjutant generals from all the states and territories that have been working with the 
NG bill to try to get this policy changed.  We had some success.  At least they are open to 
the possibility of changing it. The other thing we are doing, working very closely with Senator 
Hoeven’s office, looking at the possibility of introducing federal legislation to get this turned 
back to what it was in 2014.   I am hopeful that we can fix some of the problems we have had 
on the federal side so it doesn’t take $4.6 million a biennium to fully fund this program but I 
am still asking this committee to consider that because until we know we can get that 
changed, to ensure we have our ranks filled, and to be sure we can compete with our 
neighbors, especially to the east and the south, this tuition assistance program is critical to 
the readiness of the North Dakota National Guard.  
 
Chairman Holmberg: (58.15) I think one of the things that has to happen too is when the 
subcommittee meets they have to put this as a high priority to make sure we have some kind 
of safety valve, so that if the feds don’t change, and if the University System raises their 
tuition beyond what was estimated, that there be some kind of mechanism for the protection 
of the men and women that sign up for the Guard. It might include, but not limited to such 
things as right now, the university system waives a certain amount of tuition for these folks. 
Maybe there has to be change part way through the season to protect these people because 
as was pointed out at the emergency commission, when you see the rules and regulations 
when you sign up, there is language in there that says “subject to” whatever, but this young 
19-year-old doesn’t see that because there are many shiny objects  that they like. Senator 
Hogue, Chair., Senator Holmberg and Senator Grabinger will be on the subcommittee.  
 
Adj. Gen:  Continued with testimony on page 11 regarding the Air Guard Contracts and the 
Army Guard Contracts. As shown on Attachment #2 in my testimony there were three 
separate requests for general fund increases in this budget line which were also included in 
the executive recommendation. The first request - $300,000 to meet the general fund match 
for maintenance and repair projects for buildings and infrastructure that have a percentage 
of state support. (1.01.06) The second request is for state support for the new 99,000 sq. ft. 
Fargo Readiness Center and storage building to be completed in spring of 2021. The third 
request is $221,598 of general funds to source an existing federally funded FTE that will 
serve as Project Manager for our Camp Grafton Expansion proposal. (1. An item not 
included in our budget request is the design costs for a new readiness center in 
Dickinson, with a storage building, detailed on Attachment # 3 in my testimony.   
 
(1:03:11) Senator Robinson: Has the flood issue at Camp Grafton North been mitigated? 
Where are we at with that?  
 
Adj. Gen:  I have not tracked it closely. The water is way down the riprap and I know its 
dropped significantly in the last year or two.  Right now there is no threat to Camp Grafton. 
He continued with his testimony on page 12 regarding the design costs for a new readiness 
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center in Dickinson which is not included in our budget request along with a storage building, 
detailed on Attachment # 3 in my testimony. We have great support from the community of 
Dickinson, they have already donated the land and that unit really does need a new facility. 
That’s an MP company.  MP companies have been very popular over the last 15,16 years 
when it comes to deployments and meeting our world wide obligations for the department of 
defense.    
 
(1.05.11) Chairman Holmberg: Does the department of defense have a number of units that 
are MP’s or do they rely upon the reserves in the Guard to fill those positions as they go 
around the globe? Just the military police. Do they have lots of regular army that are or do 
they rely heavily on the Guard?  
 
Adj. Gen: For military police, that’s pretty well balanced.  Although ours have been deployed 
at least three times. They went to Iraq, they had a mission at Quantanamo Bay, and we just 
got them back from Afghanistan where they served as a personal security detachment for 
senior leaders coming in and out of Afghanistan.  The off tempo for MP’s has been deployed 
maybe once every 4-5 years so they’ve been pretty busy. (1.06.14)   Next item is Veterans 
Cemetery Salaries. There is an organization, North Dakota Veterans Cemetery Foundation, 
(NDVCF) that has provided money each biennium in support of the cemetery.  
 
Senator Robinson: We commend the Guard; the work you have done is beautiful. We now 
have stability in financing. He also commented about the beautiful setting at the cemetery.  
 
Adj. Gen: It is the best one in the country. It is a beautiful setting. Between your support and 
the private foundations, we’ve been able to maintain that facility. It has to be at the highest 
possible state of repair at all times. (1.9.10) He continued with page 13 – Reintegration 
Program. There wasn’t a solution right now to maintain our requirement and meet our need 
for the behavioral health assistance in the National Guard without having our own social 
workers. It’s important for everyone to have behavioral health services they need. For me, it 
is a readiness issue and if I don’t have them available, that impacts my ability to send units 
down that are trained and ready to go. Subdivision 2. Salaries and Wages of the NDDES:  
We have 4 regional coordinators; we see a need for these coordinators. We need to help the 
local folks out because it is difficult for them to get properly trained. (1:13:25) Operating 
Expenses Page 13. We need to do a better job in communicating with our customers. We 
need to let them know that, next biennium, under the law we have to go to actual cost per 
line. Some of the things we have done; we set up a working group with the 25 communities 
that we provide emergency communication with to start the process of discussing how we 
are going to set this rate. Another group includes first responders. (1.16.57) Capital Assets 
Page 14. We just need the authority to buy the equipment if we qualify with the federal 
government requirements. He continued with the testimony pages 14-15 as well as the 
Governor’s recommendation Section 3-12 and SB 2016 Sections 3-4. (page 15-16). 
(Section 5) If this authority would have been in place, our tuition situation probably could 
have been resolved at that time. Readiness remains my number one priority.   
 
(1:26:08) Senator Robinson: We are still challenged in significant ways with mental health. 
I appreciate your efforts to put research into that area. The more we can do the better.  
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Adj. Gen: I appreciate that. If soldiers can’t deploy because of mental health that affects our 
readiness which affects everyone in the state.  
 
Senator Mathern: Will the new cemetery in the east impact the cemetery here in terms of 
space needed and all of that?   
 
Adj. Gen: I don’t have the numbers yet. We had concerns about that. It is serving folks that 
want to be buried in the Fargo-Moorhead area. The smaller facility in Fargo provides the 
capability of them to be closer to their families if that is what they desire.    
 
(1:29:25) Chairman Holmberg: Closed the hearing on SB  2016.   
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
 A Subcommittee hearing for the adjutant general  
 

Minutes:                                                 1. Camp Grafton Expansion Project  
2. Proposed Amendment  

 
Chairman Hogue: Called the Subcommittee to order at 11:30 am in the Harvest Room. Let 
the record show that all committee members were present.  Senator Hogue, Chair., Senator 
Holmberg and Senator Grabinger.  Alex Cronquist, Legislative Council and Becky Deichert, 
OMB were also present.  
 
Alan S. Dohrmann, Adjutant General of North Dakota: I believe it is worthwhile to talk 
about Camp Grafton Expansion, Tuition Assistance and Strategic Investment & Improvement 
Fund (SIIF) appropriation. I’m prepared to answer any questions about those 3 subjects.   
 
Senator Hogue: We had some discussion about the 6000 acres for Camp Grafton South, 
the expansion.  An area of questioning was what combination fee ownership and lease 
ownership would work for the project, if at all. 
 
 Adjutant General: Submitted Attachment #1, Camp Grafton Expansion Project containing 
background information concerning Cap Grafton and the reason for expanding Camp 
Grafton.  As far as what combination would work, it could be as little as 200-300 acers to get 
the fee interest in land that we would definitely want for the actual range construction. There 
will be a range building, an array of targets, that is the portion of the land we’d like to have 
complete ownership of. As you get further into the safety danger zone, the range fan, if we 
had a lease interest and our resource tells that a 25-year lease interest would be enough for 
the federal government to make the investment to build the range complex. Federal military 
construction dollars’ estimate is between $15-20M. (2.44)   
 
Chairman Hogue: Have you talked or considered if the lease interest would have to be 
traditional, or could it be one where you don’t have exclusive possession of the land but the 
land owner could still continue to use? 
 
Adjutant General: About 95% of Camp Grafton is currently in agriculture production. The 
only issue with the range area, would be working with ranchers for the 75-80 days a year we 
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would be firing to protect their livestock. The likely hood of a ricochet ending up on the very 
edge and injuring cattle is quite low. We only fire 556 ammunition, a lot of hunters are at 224-
228. We went back 20 years and haven’t had an injury or claim for injury or death of livestock. 
We would anticipate all the land we lease to continue in agriculture production, with 
provisions in the lease agreement that for those days, cattle would need to be moved.  
 
Chairman Hogue: Is that even necessary if the likelihood of a stray round is so remote?  
 
Adjutant General: Obviously you need to move them out of the immediate area. Cattle will 
graze right around the targets, we had to move them back to a safe distance. Otherwise, we 
have process in place we let landowners know when the ranges are firing. We would want 
all humans to be outside of the range fan, if there was damage to the livestock we would go 
through the Federal Torts Claims process to make sure the owner was made whole.    
 
Senator Grabinger:  I have been a little bit involved getting a firing range in my community, 
although that wasn’t successful for some of the same reasons you’re pointing out. My 
business was straight in the line of fire of a shooting range for 30 years. I don’t believe I had 
a ricochet. When you are talking about the leases, that is so they can’t develop the property 
down range? 
 
Adjutant General: Yes. We are just making sure we have enough interest in the property 
and that it isn’t infringed upon.   
 
Chairman Hogue: We discussed an alternative, to give you a sum of money such as 
$500,000, and to direct the money be used for you to go out and try to option that land. Either 
what you need to own or lease, as opposed to a $15M appropriation. What are your thoughts 
on that? 
 
(7:32) Adjutant General:  I’d have to give that some additional thought.  How can we get to 
the point where we can engage with the federal government? To do that I need some level 
of interest in about 6000 acres. The $500,000 is a good first step, that means at least two 
years before we enter into conversations with land owners about either an exchange of 
property or lease agreement.  We have done 4 town hall meetings; no one is really tipping 
their hat because they know we don’t have any money. We do know there are some folks 
that are not interested, if we could secure the interest in the land that would hold the range, 
and entered in agreement with some of the other land owners just in case a round were to 
hit their land.    
 
Chairman Hogue: With an option you could tie up that land right away.  You could say you 
want an agreement to lease your property for the next 25 years, here is X amount of dollars 
to do that. Once you got the 6000 continuous acres, you’d expect the legislature to say, you 
got the land tied up now, the legislature could fund this.  The concern with how it was 
presented was you don’t have eminent domain, you are trying to get 6000 acres, how will 
you do that for $15M after the first 3,000-4,000 acres. Then the other land owners will figure 
out you need their property and then they raise the price.    
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Adjutant General: That is the concern all along.  We’ve talked about how is it best to proceed 
with this project. The best approach being open and honest about this with everyone. 
Knowing full well that being open and honest, might drive property values up.  
 
Chairman Hogue: Would you tell us, whether that proposal to give you money to go out and 
option this 6,000 acers track, by the ownership of 200-300 acers and long term lease, if that 
is something you think you could do. Then how much you would need to do that. That was 
confirmed they could do that. On the green sheet, there’s a new FTE for expansion of Camp 
Grafton. Is it for this project or the main land camp?  
 
Adjutant General: It is for this project. But in addition to this project, we’ve been actively 
pursuing other users for the 2 camps. NASA has done some testing there, we’ve entered into 
a memorandum agreement with General Atomics, we’re meeting next week with U.S. North 
Comm. with testing they wish to do. There are revenue generating opportunities. We need a 
state employee to handle those things.  
 
(12:24) Chairman Hogue: You would need that FTE regardless? That was confirmed.  
 
Senator Grabinger: On the funding for tuition assistance, the $2M, what level does that 
bring us up to?  
 
Adjutant General: That allows us to pay tuition assistance for eligible Army and Air National 
Guard through the biennium with current Federal policies.  
 
Senator Grabinger: I don’t want to get back into the same situation we were, because we 
didn’t give you enough.  
 
Adjutant General: With what we know right now and assuming no more than a 4% tuition 
hike at the schools, this will get us through the biennium. This came up in the Emergency 
Commission, there are things we are working on with Congressional delegation. One is to 
get Federal tuition assistance for the Air National Guard ND, which is the only reserve not to 
have it. The biggest thing, getting a policy decision by the Department of Defense, using 
federal tuition assistance in conjunction with the GI bill, is dual compensation.  We heard 
recently, that the Department of Defense (DOD) general council, although he’s sympathetic 
to Adjutant General’s point of view,  he thinks it requires a law change. We’ve been working 
with Senator Hoeven’s office to get that into the authorization act.  
 
(15:10) Senator Holmberg: The safety valve for the tuition might be an additional 
assessment from the campuses if they go 6% tuition. Right now 25% of the tuition is waved 
on the campuses with the proper safeguards a provision that if the money was running out, 
they could go to 30-40% tuition waiver. Take the money from the schools rather than from 
the students. I don’t know if you have the opportunity to look at that. We can just say leave it 
at the 25, but if there is a shortfall, that the second year of the biennium the schools would 
pay 40%.  I don’t know the number.  
 
Adjutant General:  There are some states that just waive tuition.  From an administrative 
standpoint that would be cheaper to administer.  So instead of the university having to 
manage a 25% waiver program and us managing a 75% reimbursement program, it could all 
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be managed by the university. We haven’t had those conversations with Higher Ed, but to 
just spread the pain. Most tuition waiver money goes to NDSU; second highest is UND. Even 
those universities or the system waiving a percentage point or two as their tuition rates go up 
that would allow us to plan more precisely for the biennium.  
 
(17.13) Senator Holmberg:  We already plucked so many feathers off the goose, if you only 
pluck a few more maybe they won’t hiss so much. But all of a sudden we tell them they have 
to give up all the feather from the goose, then we will get a roomful of those folks. There has 
to be a way to do that that protects the students. We are protecting the students.   
 
Adjutant General: We have requested an emergency clause for that section just in case we 
run short spring semester.  We are asking for carry over authority that maybe we don’t 
expend this biennium just because it’s so important to keep that consistency for the students.     
 
Chairman Hogue: If the federal policy was reversed back to the original interpretation you’d 
probably have some of the $2M left, that you’d want to carry that over.  
 
Adjutant General: The base budget is around $2.6M, if we had Air Force Federal Assistance  
for the Air National Guard and we got that dual compensation policy reversed, the $6.2M 
would be close to what we’d need for the biennium. Not knowing if that is going to happen, 
but I’d like to get into the position we thought we were in last biennium where we carried over 
monies for a rainy day.  I would like to get back to that point where we have some 
sustainability and predictability because right now the numbers we have here are based on 
our projections of no more than 4% increase by university system and a gradual growth and 
in-strength of the National Guard.  We have 200 open positions, if they were all filled, that 
would be a great problem to have but the money probably would not be enough.  
 
(19.34) Senator Holmberg: I certainly don’t want to be asking the Guard to be plucking the 
feathers from the goose. Could you make an amendment that allows if they’re running short 
they can come to the Emergency Commission?  Maybe they could assess up to 35%, I don’t 
know. 
 
(20:10) Alex Cronquist, Legislative Council:  When you say with the 35%, are you talking 
about the waiver from the universities? 
 
Senator Holmberg:  Yes. Is 35% a big enough cushion? 
 
Adjutant General: I think we have enough data we could probably provide a good estimate 
of what that 35% would cost. 
 
Senator Holmberg: Why don’t you get us that, we will draft the amendment. Then it’s not 
what the Guard wants but what the legislature might mandate.  
 
Chairman Hogue: You’ve had the ability to do line transfers for maintenance of the armories.  
One thing we haven’t resolved for state agencies yet, is the request for the ability to transfer 
up to 10% between line items.  That issue is not resolved but will likely be resolved on 
Wednesday. Question on the veteran’s cemetery, that went up $100,000, for increase for 
salaries and benefits?  That was confirmed.  
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Senator Grabinger: Back to the maintenance and repairs with the $500,000, that’s a 
separate deal than the 10%?  That was confirmed.  The 500 has been in previous budgets.   
 
Adjutant General:  That’s correct.  That’s part of the reason that when the money is tight, 
we’ve been able to take some risk with deferred maintenance. We’ve used that authority in 
the past to try to keep our buildings in good repair.   
 
Senator Grabinger: The question that hasn’t been settled yet is the line item transfers. That 
was confirmed by the Adj. Gen.    
 
(22:36) Chairman Hogue: Can you give us an update on the Fargo Armory? 
 
Adjutant General: The money was appropriated last biennium.  I believe it was $32M in 
federal authority, $1M in state. The million was required to raise the grade to get it out of the 
flood plain. Right now we are waiting on the results of the environmental assessment. A 
couple tribes have made comments that we have to regress. It will be easy to accommodate. 
They want to be present when excavation is being done, in case of any cultural resources. 
Once that is done we’re at 95% design, then 100% design.  We anticipate breaking ground 
this spring.  
 
Chairman Hogue: So it is a 19-21 biennium project? 
 
 Adjutant General:  Yes. We do have the FTE’s in there to provide support for that once it’s 
completed.  
 
Senator Homberg:  Do you have the FTE’s in current budget or this budget? He was told in 
this budget.   
 
Chairman Hogue: I don’t have any further questions.   
 
Adjutant General:  The 10% transfer authority, that was put into our budget by OMB. We 
are going to ask for a similar authority. We are 4 agencies in one. As money got tight, and 
because of the way the National Guard and DES are funding a lot through special funds. 
There is a lot of flexibility for homeland security, and the national Guard to move federal 
dollars around, not so much state radio. We were going to ask for the authority to transfer 
money within the office of the Adjutant General, to state radio. I see that as an example where 
the 10% authority could be used.  Also tuition purposes. The emergency commission might 
say that’s great but you can come to us anyway, that worked pretty well. But if we want to 
provide that level of flexibility, these are things we could use the 10% authority for.    
 
Adjutant General: Just to follow up on some topics that are brought up, but on the 10% 
transfer authority, I can tell you that was put into our budget by OMB.  We had considered 
and we are going to ask for a similar authority.  And the reason we are going to ask for that 
is we are really four agencies in one if you count Civil Air Patrol. But as money got tight and 
because of the way both the National Guard and DES are funded a lot through special funds, 
through federal grants, the State Radio is almost exclusively general fund dollars but there 
is a lot of flexibility for Homeland Security and for the National Guard to move federal dollars 
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around to cover the requirements, not so much the State Radio. So we were going to ask for 
the authority to transfer money within the office of the Adj. Gen. so that if I had money I could 
spare in the National Guard and we had an operational shortfall in State Radio that we could 
transfer that money over. So I see that as an example of where this 10% authority may be 
used.  I also believe that the state tuition assistance issues we had this current biennium that 
this authority could have been used for that purpose. The Emergency Commission might say 
that’s great but you can come to us anyway and that worked pretty well.  But if you want to 
provide that level of flexibility and efficiency within the agency these are some things that the 
10% authority could be used for.  We do have one amendment to the governor’s budget 
recommendation, Attachment #2.  Proposed Amendment.     
 
Holly Gaugler, Budget Officer for the Adjutant General: We are requesting a carry over 
language amendment to SB 2016, due to several factors. The fact that we are getting down 
to the end of our open disasters, it’s very difficult to predict when those payments will be 
made. If it’s this current biennium or next. Nothing has changed in our overall obligation to 
the State Disaster Relief Fund.  It’s just a matter of timing.  It’s hard to manage the budget, 
and guessing when that project will be paid. We have 5 open disasters we were anticipating 
to be closed this past June. Due to government shut down, FEMA is slowing things down. 
Makes my life tough to try to get the appropriations right.  The State Disaster Relief Fund has 
the same unobligated amount of about $25.9 M., nothing is changed in the total.     
 
Chairman Hogue: Adjourned the meeting.   
 
  



2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Appropriations Committee 
Harvest Room, State Capitol 

SB 2016 
2/13/2019 

Job # 32693 
 

☒ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk:  Rose Laning / Florence Mayer 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to provide an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the office of the 
adjutant general; and to provide for a transfer. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Testimony # 1 - 5 

 
Legislative Council: Alex Cronquist 
OMB: Becky Deichert 
 
Senator Hogue: Called the subcommittee to order on SB 2016. Chairman Holmberg and 
Senator Grabinger were also present.  
We just want to go over the proposed amendments and get General Dohrmann’s reaction to 
those. As you can see we followed the governor’s recommendations pretty closely. There 
were 2 things the full committee was wrestling with. 1 was the proposal that called for the 
expansion of Camp Grafton South, the other was to deal with the tuition. With these 
amendments we proposed to take $600,000 out of the SIIF fund and to use it to authorize 
the Adjutant General to buy options to rent or buy real-estate. There is a cap of up to 400 
acres, if you have a different idea let us know. On the tuition waiver, we provided the 
recommended appropriation and increase the amount of the waiver from 25 to 30%. That 
doesn’t come out of your budget. Between the appropriation and the increase in the tuition 
waiver, that should keep you solvent through the biennium. In your budget you have a lot 
more carryover authority than most agencies and we kept that. 
 
Alex Cronquist: Handed out the Base Level Funding Sheet, Attachment #1. 
 
Senator Hogue: Provided Attachment #2. 
 
Major General Dohrmann, ND Adjutant General: Thank you for your support. Provided 
Attachment #3. I did prepare testimony to go over some of the things you wanted to address.  
On the tuition assistance, I appreciate the support there. I know we had the conversation last 
time of what happens if every other NDUS school follows NDSUs lead and makes a full time 
student 13 credit hours. That was the additional $160,000 you added. With the optional 
adjustment, it assumes a 4% increase in tuition each year, but if you throw on top of that a 
different way of defining full time students; If we can’t get to 35%, if we could at least, during 
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the biennium, say that if any tuition increases apply to guard members and the state 
assistance, it would allow us to budget with confidence. On Camp Grafton expansion, my 
only concern is with the 400 acres and fee.  When it comes to securing land to build the 
range, there may be some landowners that would rather sell than lease. There is only one 
farmstead down there. Any land that is further out in the safety danger zone, if we would 
even want to own that. To be limited to 400 acres, might limit our ability to negotiate with land 
owners.  
 
Senator Hogue: Do you have an amount in mind? A question for Senator Holmberg while 
you look for the answer: I was under the impression that the other higher ed institutions will 
go to this blended tuition, is that a good assumption? 
 
Senator Holmberg: I think it’s a work in progress. I don’t know what it will do. They are 
searching for a lot of flexibility and it will depend on what the legislature feels like.  
 
Senator Hogue: That will continue to have an impact on his dollars.  
 
General Dohrmann: I looked through some of the land owner discussions. I think if that limit 
was up to 1,600 acres, that would provide flexibility if one of those land owners would rather 
sell. We have talked with the Stockman’s association and the farmers and ranchers, we 
understand that our training impacts people’s lives down there. We say it’s only 75-80 days 
a year where we fire weapons but if you live there, you’re listening to gun fire. Lacking the 
authority and lacking the resources to really dig into this, I can’t tell you right now that there’s 
a plan in place and we have assurances from land owners, but I’d hate to limit it to 400 acres. 
We are just talking purchase or lease options; we can work language in there that are subject 
to appropriations. We can come back next biennium and lay out the plan for the legislature. 
There is a level of security long term in owning land, but if we can get the range we need for 
25-30 years, that might be a good solution. Also, just to make sure that without the Legacy 
funding in there, that we have a showing of support and commitment from the legislature that 
if we can find a solution we will have that support down the road. With providing the resources 
to enter into the lease or buy options, I think that is the support we need from the legislature 
to move forward and to start negotiations.  
 
(9:58) Senator Hogue: That is why I put that subsection 2 in there, the legislative intent. It’s 
not binding, but we do it with the water projects, and we have tended to stick to the intent 
and the committee’s recommendations.  
 
General Dohrmann: The reality is even if you didn’t put legislative intent in there, and said 
we’re going to put $15M of Legacy against this, that could all be taken away next session 
anyway. 
 
Senator Hogue: Right. Committee, any concern with the 1,600 acres versus 400? 
 
Senator Grabinger: I have no problem with it, if we’re going to give him the option, we have 
to do this.  
 
Senator Hogue: I was going to go back to the tuition issue, so you feel with the $2.1M. 
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General Dohrmann: Last time we gave you a number of $164,572 we would be short if 
every school followed NDSU’s lead on definition of full time student. They are probably 
planning on doing that.  
 
Senator Hogue: I gathered that was an updated number. Alex, is that right? 
 
Alex Cronquist: The $164,572 is a number from the Adjutant General. As far as the blending 
of tuition with the university system institutions, that is something they have spoken about to 
the interim higher education committee this past summer. Their plan is for all campuses to 
have blended tuition rates with the fees by this fall. 
 
Senator Hogue: With the combo of increasing the percentage and appropriation, the intent 
is to keep you signing up students.  
 
General Dohrmann: Will that apply to both tuition waiver and tuition grant? The 2 are tied 
together. For the grant, they track at the NDSU rate. For code for the tuition grant program, 
25% of the NDSU rate. Just want to make sure we look at that. Will have to renegotiate with 
the private schools if we raise the rate.  
 
Alex Cronquist: I am not sure of that.  
 
Senator Hogue: Let’s check on that and confirm either way.  
 
General Dohrmann: I don’t really know the impact of that. In the next week we will sign our 
first agreement with a tribal college. That will anticipate a waiver based on 25% of NDSU 
tuition rate. We will have to go back to U-Mary and Jamestown and everyone else if that 
calculation changes.  
 
Senator Hogue: Any other concerns that you have? 
 
General Dohrmann: I wanted to address the SIIF funding of state radio of $1,212,253. That 
is in here? (That was confirmed.) We explained why that wasn’t necessary this biennium, 
that can be fixed next. On the 10% transfer authority, I see that isn’t here. Should I waste any 
time talking about that?  
 
Senator Hogue: No, because we want to ask you about 2045 if we have time. 
 
Alex Cronquist: There were a couple amendments sent to us by the Adjutant General on a 
couple more exemption sections. Does the General want to go over them? Provided 
Attachment #4 & Attachment #5.  
 
General Dohrmann: Sure, on the first exemption, a carryover for the state radio 
communication tower package. This has been going on for some time, it seems to take a 
while, but working with DOT and other stake holders, it has taken awhile to get these towers 
built out. The amendment recognizes the fact that we are moving toward a new radio system, 
so we want to make sure that money is available. Not only to build out the towers, but to work 
in concert with HB 1435, which is the funding mechanism to build out the new state wide 
interoperability radio network siren. Just to make sure any investments we make in radio 
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towers both support current communication needs and the next generation radio system that 
is put in. We’d request that carryover authority for the tower package. The next one is an 
exemption to carry over for the disaster relief fund authority that was granted last biennium. 
It is always difficult to work with FEMA; we don’t actually control when disasters are closed 
out. Because of the longest Federal Government shutdown in recent history, FEMA has not 
been processing disaster claims of late, so we are concerned we will need that money to 
carry over to close out the prior year disasters. To date, of the money authorized for this 
biennium, we spent $4.6 of the $8.5 that was appropriated. We are just asking for that money 
to be carried over so we can close out those disasters with the money that was previously 
appropriated. That will leave the dearth balance in excess of $25M.  
 
(19:04) Senator Hogue: I don’t know if you were here yesterday in SB 2055, we agreed for 
those dollars in the disaster relief fund, you wouldn’t have to go to the budget section or the 
emergency commission. You would just have to report your expenditures to the budget 
section. That would give you the further authority that anything left over from the previous 
biennium would carry over.  
 
Holly Gaugler, Adjutant General’s Office: Carry over would go through the same process 
as a new appropriation.  
 
Senator Holmberg: I think we should run it up the flag pole. There will be another month 
and a half of mulling over it. I don’t see why we don’t try it.  
 
General Dohrmann: In my prepared comments, there are some things about the 10% 
transfer authority, the state employee benefit package, I am supportive of the governor’s 
package. I have had town halls with all my state employees and also had a survey done to 
engage the climate within our various divisions and not having pay raises for 2 years will start 
to impact us soon if we don’t get after that employee compensation package. We need to 
recruit and sustain the quality people we have. The last point I want to bring up is the transfer 
of FTEs to ITD under unification. That is being debated quite a bit. We have 4 IT specialists; 
their focus is to make sure state radio is up 24/7/365. We have been working with ITD to 
transfer those FTEs and work under this new government structure. For us, it hasn’t had any 
impact at all. Our relationship with ITD is better than its ever been.  As this process matures, 
we will have much greater reach back authority than we’ve experienced in the past. The 
reason we have 4 IT specialists; it is a zero defect mission in state radio.  If we have a 
disaster, making sure DES and Homeland Security that their comms are up and running all 
the time.  They are also the smart innovative young people that figure out how to put nest 
cameras up on poles so we can keep folks in Morton County and law enforcement safe in 
times of civil unrest.  For our IT folks, when they came in under this unification scheme, their 
life didn’t really change.  They came to work in the same location.  They support the same 
people they’ve always supported but a side benefit has been that we’ve had better 
relationships and reach back with ITD.   
 
Senator Holmberg: There’s a great debate on how this will end. With our Senate budget we 
put in the IT unification amendments, in the House they are not. I don’t know where the IT 
budget is right now, have they passed it out? 
 
Alex Cronquist: I believe it is in House Appropriations, so out of the Government Ops. 
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Senator Holmberg: That is a work in progress. I think we should continue, and at some point 
we will have to approve all the budgets.  
 
Senator Grabinger: I wish I’d have asked him for testimony on the salary increase bill.  
 
Senator Holmberg: (Inaudible) …the insurance is also something we hear from state 
employees is a huge benefit. We’ve looked at having a minimum per month. By the time to 
book keepers got done with me, I was in tatters. You have to figure out who is the lowest 
paid state employees, and what will he or she get, that becomes your minimum. That doesn’t 
accomplish anything. The only way to do that is put in more money. We don’t want to put 
additional money into that line item at this point.  
 
Senator Hogue: Sounds like we need a couple more amendments. We need to amend the 
acreage from 400 to 1,600. We will adopt your proposed amendment on the carryover for the 
disaster relief dollars. And we will have to check whether that applies to both the tuition grants 
and tuition waivers?  
 
General Dohrmann: Yes, the grant program is tied to the waiver program in regard to how 
the waiver is set for those private universities and institutions. We just have to make sure 
that is harmonized.  If we raised that, we’d have to do that knowingly and I don’t know what 
impact that will have on those participating schools as to whether that might drive them away 
because the legislature cannot direct them to participate in the program.   
 
Senator Hogue: Just a quick question, we heard SB 2095 yesterday. This is a federal law 
change that affects you. I believe it is 6% the dollars for presidential declared disasters is set 
aside for competitive mitigation projects. You want to be able to use the state fund, to be the 
state’s share for those types of competitive bids? 
 
Cody Schultz, Homeland Security: Primarily correct. The change in federal law did move 
6% of the previous year’s presidential declared disaster mitigation funding into a competitive 
grant. Currently the statute allows for the state disaster relief fund must be linked to a 
presidentially declared disaster so the proposed language changes that to read Federal 
Emergency Management Agency Disaster Response Recovery and Mitigation which would 
cover both presidentially declared disaster and this new process in federal law.  
 
Senator Hogue: I don’t know if we need to have another meeting. 
 
Senator Holmberg: I am good. As soon as the amendments are put together, then Alex can 
send them to us. If we don’t say anything within an hour, we agree.  
 
Senator Hogue: Closed the hearing on SB 2016. 
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Chairman Holmberg: called the committee to order on SB 2016.  
 
Senator Hogue: presented Amendment 19.0229.01002 and explained it.  
 
Senator Hogue: moved Amendment 19.0229.01002. 
Senator Oehlke: Seconded the motion.   
Voice vote carried. 
 
Senator Hogue: Moved a Do Pass on SB 2016 as Amended. 
Senator Bekkedahl:  seconded the motion.  
 

A Roll Call Vote was taken:   Yes:__14___   No:__0___   Absent:__0___.  
  

 
Senator Hogue: will carry the bill.  
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